Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Ministry of Education Taibah University-College of Education Dept. of Curricula and Methods of Teaching



المملكة العربية السعودية وزارة التـــــعليم جامعة طيبة - كلية التربية قسم مناهج وطرق تدريس

Mobile Learning Adoption by Language Instructors in Taibah

University

A Projectsubmitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the Master Degree in EFL Curricula and Instruction

By

Sabah SadiqHussainBakhsh

Supervised by

Dr. Safa'a Mohammad Al Hebaishi

Associate Professor of EFL Curricula and Instruction

Taibah University

(1436 AH - 2015)







	النتيجة النهائية للطالب في مقرر المشروع البحثي
<u>`</u>	الب/ الطالبة:جمعاً ج جمعاً دمه جمعه بعد بخ
	کاديمي: بح ۲. م. ۲. کاديمي:
Mobile	لشروع البحثي: –
Instru	etors in Taibah University
الدرجة	السان
en	المشرف عضو لجنة المناقشة الأول (نموذج رقم ١). (من ٤٠)
x	عضو لجنة المناقشة الثاني (نموذج رقم ١). (من ٤٠)
41	المتوسط الحسابي لدرجات عضوي لجنة المناقشة. (من ٤٠)
へ・	أستاذ المقرر المشرف على الطالب (نموذج رقم ٢). (من ٦٠)
٩٨	ية الطالب النهائية في المقرر (من ١٠٠) = متوسط درجات عضوي لجنة المناقشة (من ٤٠) + درجة أستاذ المقرر (من ٦٠)
A+	التقدير النهائي للطالب في المقرر (رمزًا)
	التقدير النهائي للطالب في المقرر (كتابة)

П



www.manaraa.com

Dedication

I dedicate this effort with love to

My great parents who supported and encouraged me to do my best throughout all

difficult times of my life,

My beloved husband, Qassem, who has always given me love, support and

motivation,

My son, Salem, who gives me hope in life,

- My dear brothers and sisters,
- My gorgeous supervisor.



Acknowledgments

First of all great thanks to Allah, The Almighty, who gave me the strength and patience to do this research project for the master's degree. Actually, I wouldn't have been able to complete this research without those wonderfully distinguished people around me. I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my research project's supervisor, **Dr. Safa'a Mohammad Al Hebaishi**, for her guidance, patience, encouragement, thoughtfulness and endless support. She kindly provided me with a great deal of valuable feedback. Moreover, my thanks go to Taibah University and, more specifically, Curricula and Methods Department at the Faculty of Education for theircontinuous support. My great thanks extended to Dr. Abdul Aziz Islam and all members of ELC. I offer my friends ReemJuraidand Anwar Al Arfaj sincere gratitude for their constant enthusiasm and support. Finally, I owe special debts, love, appreciation, and heartfelt thanks, to my parents, my husband, my brothers and sisters who understood my full time dedication toward this work .I'd like also to thank my dear friends and colleagues.



Title	Page
Dedication	III
Acknowledgments	IV
Table of contents	V
List of tables	VIII
List of appendices	IX
Abstract	Х
Chapter (1) Introduction	1 2
1.2. The Statement of the Problem	5
1.3. Research Purposes	6
1.4. Research Questions and Hypotheses	6
1.3. Research Significance	7
1.6. Research Delimitations	8
1.7. Research Methodology	8
1.8. Terms Definitions	9
1.9. Research Organization	10
Review of Literature	
2. 1. Definition of Mobile Learning	11
2.2. Advantages of Mobile Learning	12
2. 3. The Benefits for Teachers	15
2.4. Mobile Learning and Teaching English	17
2. 5. Disadvantages of Mobile Learning	19

Table of contents



2. 6. Conclusion	20
Chapter (2) Research Methodology and Procedures	23
3.1. Introduction	24
3.2. Research Design	24
3.3. Research Variables	24
3.4. Population and Sample	24
3.5. Research Instrument	25
3.6. Questionnaire Validity and Reliability	26
3.7. Research Procedures	28
3.8. Data Analysis	29
3.9. Summary	29
Chapter (3) Results and Discussion	30
4.1. Data Analysis and Results	31
4.1.1. The results concerning demographic information	31
4.1.2. The results of Research Questions	33
4.1.2.1. The result of the first question	33
4.1.2.2. The result of the second question	49
4.1.2.3. The result of the third question	51
4.1.2.4. The result of the fourth question	52
4.1.2.5. The result of the fifth question	53
4.1.3. Discussion of the Research Results	54
4.1.4. The relationship between review of literature and the results of	FC
current study	30
4.2. Recommendations	57
4.3. Suggestions for further research	57



References	58
Appendices	62
Arabic Abstract	72



No of table	page
Table (1) Pearson correlation coefficients between each statement and the total	
score of each axis.	26
Table (2) Reliability coefficient Ratios of Cronbach's Alpha.	28
Table (3) Frequencies and Percentages of Demographic Information.	31
Table (4) Frequencies and percentages for each statement in first domain.	33
Table (5) Means and standard deviation , independent samples T- test	24
for each statement in first domain.	34
Table (6) Frequencies and percentages for each statement in second domain.	36
Table (7) Means, standard deviations and independent samples T- test for each	37
of the statement in second domain.	
Table (8) Frequencies and percentages for each statement in third domain.	38
Table (9) Means, standard deviations, and independent samples T- test for	30
each statement in third domain.	57
Table (10) Frequencies and percentages for each statement in fourth domain.	41
Table (11) means, standard deviation, and independent samples T- test for each	
of the statement in fourth domain.	42
Table (12) Frequencies and percentages for each statement in fifth domain.	44
Table (13) Means, standard deviation, and independent samples T- test for	45
each of the statement in fifth domain.	
Table (14) Frequencies and percentages for each statement in sixth domain.	47
Table (15) Means standard deviations and independent samples T- test for each	48
statement in sixth domain.	
Table (16) Means, standard deviation, and independent samples T- test for each	10
domain.	49
Table (17) The results of One-Way ANOVA regarding to the age variable.	51
Table (18) The results of One-Way ANOVA regarding to the qualification	52
variable.	
Table (19) The results of One-Way ANOVA regarding to the experience	50
variable.	53

List of tables



List of appendices

Appendix		page
1. Ap	pendix A: Letter to deanship of academic services	63
2. Ap	pendix B: Letter to deanship of graduate studies	64
3. Ap	pendix C: The Questionnaire	65
3.1.	Cover page	65
3.2.	Firstpart (Demographic Information)	66
3.3.	Secondpart (Questionnaire Statements)	67
4. Ap	pendix D: List of the jury members	70



Mobile Learning Adoption by Language Instructors in Taibah University

By

Sabah SadiqHussainBakhsh

Abstract

This study aimed to determineMobile Learning adoption among language instructors at English language center (ELC)inTaibah University, Saudi Arabia. It also examined the effect of gender, age, qualification and experience variables on adoption.A questionnaire, developed by the researcher, was administered to a sample of (69) language instructors. The results of statistical analysis indicated that although language instructors found Mobile Learninguseful and easy to use, they rarely adopted it in teaching language skills. They mainly used mobile devices to keep in contact with their students. They used applications like What'sapp, email, web browsers and text messaging feature to inform students about course alerts and share course files and documents. Adoption challenges like classroom inaccessibility, high cost of mobile fees and lack of technical support were more serious obstacles for female instructors than males. The results also indicated that there were no statistically significant differences in all domains of the questionnaire between male and female instructors in the adoption of Mobile Learning at ELC regarding to gender, age, qualification and experience variables. The study recommended language instructors to make use of the many advantages, features, and applications of mobile devices to facilitate language learning.



Chapter(1)

- **1.1. Introduction**
- 1.2. The Statement of the Problem
- **1.3. Research Purposes**
- **1.4. Research Questions and Hypotheses**
- **1.5. Research Significance**
- **1.6. Research Delimitations**
- **1.7. Research Methodology**
- **1.8. Terms Definitions**
- **1.9. Research Organization**

Review of Literature

- 2.1. Definition of Mobile Learning
- 2.2. Advantages of Mobile Learning
- 2.3. The Benefits for Teachers
- 2.4. Mobile Learning and Teaching English
- 2.5. Disadvantages of Mobile Learning
- 2.6. Conclusion



1.1. Introduction

The Learning process can be considered the most important impetus for global evolution starting from the early existence of human beings. This learning process has been gradually transformed from the traditional systems to incorporate more modern aspects of learning. The implementation of technology is expected to facilitate the learning process further for teachers and students. The vital role of technology in designing, adopting, improving and evaluating educational applications is a great and effective feature of the learning process. It has changed our life in ways we could never have imagined. Technology has improved learning by providing more resources, greater knowledge, more interaction, more collaboration, more fun and better assessment. In the field of education, the wireless portable devices are by far the most popular technological innovations as mobile devices have been great tools, not only for communication, but also as technological tools that could be vitally facilitated in learning. Consequently, it has improved the students' achievement AsChiang, Yang and Hwang (2014) said that the experimental results show that the mobile approach is able to improve students' learning performance and achievement. In addition, it helps teachers to provide an attractive environment regardless of both, time and location.

The world has witnessed three main Revolutions: the Industrial Revolution, the Electronics Revolution and the Wireless Revolution. The Wireless Revolution has generated what is known as Mobile Learning. El-Hussein and Cronje (2010) stated that the evolution of handheld portable devices and wireless technology has resulted in radical changes in the social and economic lifestyles of modern people. Mobile phones have a great potential in language teaching and learning because mobility and portability are the attributes of modern life. Today, many technological devices are



produced in portable form. These devices are reshaping users' daily lives in different ways.

Jones et al. (2006, p.252) argued for using mobile devices in the learning context considering their many advantages: Firstly, learners often find their informal learning activities more motivating than learning in formal settings such as schools where there is much less freedomto define tasks and relate activities to their own goals. Secondly, mobile devices seem to give their users a very strong sense of control and ownershipwhich has been highlighted in research on motivation as a key motivational factor. Thirdly, mobile devices also allow communicationbetween learners thus enabling collaborative activities. Fourthly, mobile devices are used by many people, especially young people, for entertainment, so the excitement engendered by this context may carry over to the device – mobiles become identified as "fun" devices. Fifthly, mobile devices enable learners to locate resources and information in the contextwhere they are needed and used, including 'in the field' and to share this information with others. These features suggest that using mobiles in informal settings is potentially highly motivating.

Liu, Navarrete, Maradiegue&Wivagg(2014,p.2) highlighted the benefits of Mobile Learning, "educators have become increasingly interested in the learning benefits that mobile technology can provide to students in and out of classrooms. While there is considerable enthusiasm for using mobile devices to support learning with their multimedia capabilities, portability, connectivity, and flexibility" during the learning process and keeping in touch regardless of time and place. In addition, Mobile Learning has some other important benefits such as preparing students for the future, up-to-date learning, alternative to textbooks and making it possible for learning to go outside of the classroom.



MacCallum, Jeffrey &Kinshuk (2014) strongly indicated the role of support which is needed for lecturers to successfully implement Mobile Learning in the classroom. It is needed in terms of enhancing knowledge literacy. In particular, support is needed to help teachers with the technology and assist them to effectively integrate it into the teaching environment.

Yamaguchi (2005, as cited in Tayebinik and Puteh, 2012) highlighted the application of a variety of mobile devices in the educational delivery, particularly in the field of TESOL. Mobile devices like other technologies, at first appeared peculiar for pedagogical use but slowly, they have become a part of our life. Great changes in utilizingPersonal Digital Assistant(PDA), IPod, Podcast, and cell phone for the teaching and learning of languages have proved the potential of mobile technologies. Furthermore, related literature has identified the adoption of this technology by language teachers. Portability and wide access to mobile phones have made it more popular in education. A computer is perhaps more excellent than a mobile phone "for handling various types of information such as visual, sound, and textual information, but the mobile phone is superior to a computer in portability. Hence, the integration of Mobile Learning with English teaching and learning may offer vast innovations in the coming days.

Khrisat and Mahmoud (2013) stated that compared to other developing countries, mobile technologies as well as other technologies are developing rapidly in KSA. Students in KSA either at school or at university not only have the most up-todate mobile phones, but they are also proficient in using them. This situation encourages educators and instructors to think about creative ideas to exploit this technology in the EFL classroom. So, technology provides classrooms with digital learning tools, such as computers and hand held devices, and the over-use of mobile



devices facilitate the engagement of Mobile Learning without the need for lengthy training processes for both of students and instructors in using mobiles features and applying them.

Nowadays, the old traditional methods of teaching which are incompatible with modern life and thoughts of students are still used by some teachers, but some other language teachers use technology immensely, especially Mobile Learning, this actual fact has motivated the researcher to conduct this study to measure the level of adoption of Mobile Learning by ELC instructors at Taibah University in Al Madinah Al Munawwarahh, in order to propose a recommended prep- year program to apply Mobile Learning as a serious language teaching tool by using some vital software and electronic materials.

1.2. The Statement of the Problem

The popularity and the ownership of mobile devices among college students are high. According to Goundar (2011)such flexibility in the provision of education, there is a possibility in getting everyone educated once the constraints of attending classes at confined time slots and locations are removed. It means that connectivity, flexibility, portability, and interactivity are all features that make mobile technology more useful and attractive to students. Mobile technology has also proved very effective and helpful in learning English and enhancing language instruction which is considered quite challenging in Saudi Arabia. The level of mobile technology adoption among English language instructors might differ in Taibah University. Therefore, the current study focused on instructors' usage of mobile technology, their teaching practices, their use of different applications, and their demographic



characteristics to provide a baseline of mobile technology adoption on which to build future usage across the university.

1.3. Research Purposes

The purposes of this study are to:

- Determine the adoption of Mobile Learning technology by male and female instructors at the English Language Centre (ELC) in Taibah University.
- Examine the effects of gender, age, qualification and experience variables of instructors at ELC in Taibah University on adoption.

1.4. Research Questions and Hypothesis

In harmony with the above stated purposes, the following research questions are posed:

1. Domale and female instructors at the ELC in Taibah University adopt Mobile Learning technology in TEFL? from this question, the following sub-questions are derived

1.1. To what extent do male and female language instructors findMobile Learninguseful for teaching EFL?

1.2. To what extent do EFL male and instructors find that Mobile Learningeasy to use?1.3. To what extent do EFL male and female instructors adopt Mobile Learning in teaching language skills?

1.4. What are the types of teaching practices do EFL male and female instructors use?

- 1.5. What are the mobile features and apps do EFL male and female instructors use?
- 1.6. Whatare the adoptions challenges do EFL male and female instructors face?
- 2. What are differences according to gender variable in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?



- 3. What are differences according to age variable in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?
- 4. What are differences according to qualification variable in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?
- 5. What are differences according to experience variable in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?

Based on the above research questions and the purposes of the study, the following null hypothesis was formulated:

1. There will be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to gender variable.

2. There will be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to age variable.

3. There will be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to qualification variable.

4. There will be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to experience variable.

1.5. Research Significance

The results of current study may

 Encourage instructors to use Mobile Learning at the English language Centre (ELC) in Taibah University.



- Motivate constant learning for both learners and instructors and learning regardless of time and place.
- 3. Supply the designers of the prep-year program at ELC with new teaching applications that facilitate learning.
- 4. Support the "new generation learners" by using mobile devices to acquire the language and adapt to their thoughts and tendencies.
- Contribute to overcoming the challenges that may face both learners and instructors in using Mobile Learning at ELC in Taibah University.

1.6. Research Delimitation

The current study is delimited to the following:

- 1. Measuring the adoption of Mobile Learning technology by instructors at ELC in Taibah University, in Al Madinah Al-Munawwarah city.
- 2. The sample of the study will be delimited to all male and female instructors at ELC in Taibah University in the second semester of the academic year 2015.
- 3. Explore the effect of gender, age, qualification and experience variables.

1.7. Research Methodology

Design

The study was both descriptive and analytic. Descriptive research is defined by Kumar (2008, p.6) thus, "the descriptive research includes surveys and fact finding enquiries of different kinds. The major purpose of descriptive research is description of the state of affairs, as it exists at present. The main characteristics of this method are that the researcher has no control over the variables; the researcher can only report what has happened or what is happening".



Sample

The sample of the study consisted of all language instructors at ELC in Taibah University in Al Madinah Al Munawwarahhduring the second semesterof the academic year 2015. There areabout (67) male instructors and (34) female instructors.

Instruments

To collect data for this study, the researcher developed a questionnaire to measure Mobile Learning adoption at ELC in Taibah University.

1.8. Terms Definitions

Mobile Learning

Traxler (2005, p.262) stated thatMobile Learning can perhaps be defined as "any educational provision where the sole or dominant technologies are handheld or palmtop devices". This definition may mean that Mobile Learning could include mobile phones, smartphones, personal digital assistants (PDAs) and their peripherals, perhaps tablet PCs and perhaps laptop PCs, but not desktops in carts and other similar solutions.

The procedural definition of Mobile Learning is: a personal and portable way of electronic learning which ignores times and places of learning by using mobile devices, so Mobile Learning technology gives both learners and instructors flexibility in the learning process. The serious implementation of Mobile Learning needs special content of learning materials as well as some important skills in handling the learning device in use.

Technology



Mascus (2003, as cited in Abdul Wahab, Che Rose, and Osman,2012) has broadened the concept of technology where technology is defined as "the information necessary to achieve a certain production outcome from a particular means of combining or processing selected inputs which include production processes, intrafirm organizational structures, management techniques, and means of finance, marketing methods or any of its combinations" (p.62).

Adoption

Ramachandran(2009, p.107) stated that it "means the acceptance of a new idea and putting it into practice. There is another meaning in the dictionary for adoption. It refers to taking something as one's own".

The procedural definition of adoption is: the act of something on as your own by practicing or implementing it in a certain field, so we can say that it is acceptance of something in order to use it.

1.9. Research Organization

The current study consists of three chapters. Chapter one is the introduction of the study which includes the research questions, hypothesis, purposes, significance of the study, delimitations of the study/ definition of the used terms, and review of literature. Chapter two covers the research methodology and procedures. Chapter three deals with the results, discussions, recommendations, and suggestions for further research.



Review of Literature

2.1. Definition of Mobile Learning

Mobile Learning is a type of learning that takes place via a portable or handheld device. It takes place anywhere and anytime by giving the learner freedom of studying time and place and increasing the flexibility to teachers and instructors. Thus Mobile Learning can be defined as the ability to obtain educational content on personal pocket devices such as smartphones and mobile phones and PDs. Baran (2014, p.18) pointed that "Mobile Learning emphasize mobility, access, immediacy, situativity, ubiquity, convenience and contextually. Mobile Learning includes the characteristics of mobility in physical, conceptual, and social spaces."Mobile Learningprovides flexible, informal, contextual learning with a little device.It basically means learning that can take place anywhere and anytime, learning on the go, learning on the move, using digital devices to access information at nontraditional work locations.

Shunye (2014, p.1302) defined Mobile Learning as "the ability to promote a strong interaction among apprentices and tutors, enabling them to contribute, participate and access the learning materials through mobile devices ,e.g., mobile phones, tablets, laptops, among others, at anytime and anywhere". So, the main goal is to provide greater motivation, convenience and flexibility to the learning processes in general.

The researcher conclusively defines Mobile Learning as any learning activity that allows individuals to be more productive through consuming, interacting with, or creating information using a compact digital portable device that the individual carries and fits in a pocket or purse.



2.2. Advantages of Mobile Learning

Research has indicated some advantages for Mobile Learning like mobility, portability, simplicity and flexibility.Mobility increases a learner's capability to physically move their own learning environment as they move. The mobile's portability, simplicity, and affordability were argued to make it a natural fit for education where internet connectivity may be rare.Mobile Learning includes additional benefits such as the ability to exchange information and interact with other learners almost instantly. This increases social learning advantages in this world of technology and electronics as learners communicate and collaborate with one another. A major advantage of using wireless mobile technology is to reach people who live in remote locations where there are no schools, teachers, or libraries.

Goundar (2011) stated some advantages that mobile devices offer for education in comparison to laptops or netbooks. Firstly, their lighter weight and orientation flexibility make them superior for digital reading and accessing of content. Secondly, their instant-on capability and fast switching among applications allow learning activities to proceed with less delay. Thirdly, the feature of touch screen interface allows a high degree of user interactivity. Fourthly, they are much more mobile (the advantage of mobility makes mobile phone more attractive) than laptops, as students can carry them inside or outside a room without having to close and reopen the screen and store them in the carry case ,and also use them for mobile data collection or note taking. Fifthly, since it is inexpensive to develop apps for mobile platforms, there is a rapidly growing amount of free or low-cost apps for mobile devices, many of which are suitable for education. Finally, mobile device's long battery life makes them more suitable for a school day.



Miangah and Nezarat (2012) pointed out to two main characteristics of mobile devices which are portability and connectivity. As for connectivity, designing the mobile system must have capability of being connected and communicated with the learning website using the wireless network of the device to access learning material including short message service (SMS) and mobile e-mail. Portability enables learners to move mobile devices and bring learning materials.

They also stated that among all modern communication devices, mobile phones are the most powerful communication medium even richer than email or chat as it can act as a learning device despite its technical limitations. With such a learning device, the learner controls the learning process and progress in his/her own pace based on his/her cognitive state.

It is noted that learning through the computer or e-learning enables the learners to learn in a non-classroom environment when they are at home in front of their personal computers online or offline. However, learning through the mobile phone or M-learning provides learners with the opportunity to learn when they are in the bus, outside or at work doing their part-time jobs. In fact, they can learn with flexibility in time and place.

Behera (2013) also mentioned that Mobile Learning offers some advantages to the teaching field like: a) increased mobility; learning is not restricted to fixed locations any more. b) time-saving: people currently can study when they are home or traveling;c) environmental-friendly; It is amazing to find out how much information a mobile device can carry despite its light weight; d) interactive: mobile technology enables students to closely connect with their peers, teachers, distant partners, and even interest groups worldwide, better opportunities to acquire skills, with a degree of privacy that maybe missing when using shared computer. It provides



good support for preferred modes of interaction, e.g. accessing audio content or participating in social networks on the move. Handheld devices are often an everyday part of business, so learning can contribute directly to enhancing employability, life skills and work practices, opportunities for learners to give immediate feedback on their learning experience, better assessment and diagnosis of learning problems as they occur. Learning materials can become accessible to a larger audience, through podcasts, mobile applications, blogs and e-books, which are seen by potential students, revitalizing the curriculum, rethinking teaching methods and implementing improved feedback to learners.

It also turns geographically dispersed learners into a valuable teaching resource by enabling them to contribute their local knowledge and research data more easily. In addition, it supports learner retention, progression and transition, making the learning experience more tailored to the changing needs of individuals, encouraging learners to return for knowledge updating and further study. Mobile educational systems have started to emerge as potential educational environments, the learning material is mostly colorful and inviting which may prompt students to go back and forth and practice more, learner gets stimulated in convenient and interesting learning

Klopfer (2002, as cited in Miangah and Nezarat, 2012) stated the following advantages of mobile devices; 1) social interactivity: exchanging data and collaboration with other learners is possible through mobile devices; 2) context sensitivity: the data on the mobile devices can be gathered and responded uniquely to the current location and time; 3) connectivity: mobile devices can be connected to other devices, data collection devices, or a common network by creating a shared network; 4) individuality: activities platform can be customized for individual learner.



Gaskell and Mills (2010, as cited in Goundar, 2011) concluded that there isevidenceindicating that mobile technology plays a significant role in education and the use of mobile technology is increasing in the developed world in a number of areas. For instance, in context related to education, and how hand-held devices can be used for basic language, skills, numeracy, health and safety training and some aspects of teaching and learning across the developing and developed world. The use of handheld technology provides a major opportunity to enhance access to learning and will enable many institutions to develop learner, administrative support and learning opportunities in ways which will build on current methods.

Kaur and Bhullar (2013) suggested that the use of Mobile Learning may have positive contribution to make in some areas which are: it helps learners to improve their literacy and numeracy skills and to recognize their existing abilities; it can be used to encourage both independent and collaborative learning experiences. It helps learners to: 1) identify areas where they need assistance and support; 2) remove some of the formality from the learning experience and engages reluctant learners; it helps learners remain more focused for longer periods; 3) raise self-esteem and it helps to raise self-confidence.

2.3. The Benefits for Teachers

The widespread influence of the market increased the popularity of mobile phones, and this fulfills the need of teachers to provide applications and software for learners in teaching. Moreover, comparing with other wireless devices such as laptop computers, mobile phones are rather inexpensive having functions as Internet browsers available in most devices. With such inexpensive devices accessible to even the poorest areas and having the functionalities of e-mail or SMS, it is now possible to



transfer information to and from mobile phones between instructors and learners without any difficulties.

Fritschi and Wolf (2012) explored that mobile technology can support teachers and improve their practices because it represents an exciting opportunity for educators in North America to expand their professional learning through increased access to instructors, mentors, supervisors and peers, as well as online content and resources. Professional Development (PD), focused on using mobile technology for instruction to help teachers increase student achievement and better meet their students' needs. Through careful planning and implementation, schools can develop Mobile Learning, PD programmers that support teachers, improve teaching practices that enhance the learning process.

(Retta,2009) stated that "when learners are interested in the technology, it captures their attention and makes them more interested in learning, and the right sort of learning content is introduced to them on mobile devices"(p.19)that would increase their language learning and acquisition.

They alsoprovided examples of three distinct approaches to Mobile Learning in PD. First, mobile technologyis used to deliver and enhance PD for teachers. Examples of this type of include online courses, mentoring via mobile devices, and participation in online professional communities. Second, mobile technology can be used to support teachers by streamlining administrative tasks, enhancing classroom instruction, and facilitating communication with parents, colleagues and students. Finally, PD may be focused on teaching educators how to integrate mobile technology into their classroom instruction.



2.4. Mobile Learning and teaching English

Mobile Learning technology is more useful for both inside and outside classroom activities. Such activities enable learning to be more directly connected with the real world experiments. Moreover, learning through mobile phones outside the classroom has the advantage of better exploiting the learner's free time; even the students on the move can improve their learning skills

A number of studies have shown that EFL teachers have positive attitudes toward the adoption of mobile technology in the classroom. In fact, technology-aided learning is more effective than traditional learning which is realized in a campus-wide wireless computing environment. Many studies like Levy and Kennedy, 2005; Norbrook and Scott, 2003 have concentrated on using mobile phones as a way to distribute content from teachers to students, rather than focusing on the interaction among students or communication between students and teachers which is more useful and very productive.

Gorichanaz(2011) conducted a study to find out whether there were any differences in vocabulary retention when ESL students read text with and without access to computer-mediated dictionaries. It examined the differences in short- and long-term vocabulary retention when readers using computer-mediated dictionaries versus paper dictionaries and handheld dictionaries. The study found that computermediated dictionaries were more effective for vocabulary retention than print-based dictionaries. One interesting finding wasthat for beginning learners, there was an apparent retention loss with the computer-mediated vocabulary learning. This may be due to the superficiality of looking up words on the computer; without a computer, the process requires more diligence that may have resulted in fewer words being learned, but with a higher quality of learning for each of those words. The study also



showedthat computer-aided language learning programs that focus on providing users with comprehensible input have considerable promise in promoting extensive reading and vocabulary learning. Even considering all this, it is important to note that there are some benefits to mobile technology integration that cannot be measured by test scores alone. For example, using such devices in the classroom help to prepare students to learn and use new technology in the workplace.

Thabit and Dehlawi (2012)explored the possibility of usingentertainment devices like MP4 players as an aiding tool in the educationalenvironment. They conducted empirical studies with students who had a poor background in English, but after using preloaded English Proficiency Course materials their language skills were greatly improved. In particular, this experiment showed promising effects of using MP4 players on both levels, in entry-level English learning students: performance and attitudinal. An improvement in performance was witnessed after a reasonable duration of using the MP4 players. Over-all, the students liked the device and desired its use in other courses as well.

Abbasi and Hashmi (2013) in their study proved that using mobile phones had a significant effect on not only vocabulary learning but also vocabulary retention of EFL learners although there was not a significant difference between male and female learners in the vocabulary learning and retention while using mobile phones.

Amry(2014, p.133)stated that "face-to-face learning in the classroom is a formal academic learning process and used mostly to disseminate information to individuals rather than improve social interaction between students. The social dimension is very important to constructing knowledge and to orientating students towards new educational technology that use social networks." So, mobile devices are used at



universities and higher educational institutions to enhance online interactions through discussions and to share knowledge.

Al zu'bi (2013) indicated that the positive effects on FL linguistic performance are shown strongly among college EFL learners by using mobile-based Email which is considered kind of Mobile Learning used in teaching process. The result of his study was in line with the findings of Jou (2008), Stockwell (2007), and Shang (2007), whose results provided evidence for the positive effectiveness of Mobilebased Email in writing comprehension. The interpretation of this result may be because email has been proved to be a high motivator for stimulating learners to write. It also promotes students' confidence in English and cultural learning. The overall findings indicated that students made improvements on syntactic complexity, spelling, punctuations, and grammatical accuracy, and a significant difference was found in writing sentences and short paragraph. These improvements were brought about by the communicative and corrective nature of the email activity.

2.5. Disadvantages of Mobile Learning

There are some disadvantages for Mobile Learning. As mentioned below, these disadvantages are mainly related to the technical specifications of the used devices which would affect the dependability of mobile devices for learning.

Behera (2013) mentioned some disadvantages of Mobile Learning which are: 1) the limited storage capacities; 2) device may become outdated quickly and students have to keep combating obsolescence; 3) the buttons on the keypad or styles pens are small and can be trickily for some people to manipulate; 4) too small display makes it hard to read; 5) usable with some models only; 6) network connectivity limitations and expenses / costs.



Gholami and Azarmi (2012) and Chinnery(2006) agreed thatthere are somelimitations and barriers with mobile devices to be used as educational devices. For example, reduced screen size, limited audiovisual quality, virtual keyboarding, and one-finger data entry are some of these limitations. However, the advances in technology are trying to solve these problems as they have introduced mobiles with bigger screen size and keypads that enable to have faster typing, therefore these limitations can be solved with the developing of all technical devices they can also be limited and controlled.

Kukulska-Hulme and Traxler (2005) argued that although learning service through mobile devices has some advantages, it has its own constraints as small screen, reading difficulty on such a screen, data storage and multimedia limitations, and the like. Many of the mobile phones are not designed for educational purposes. Thus, it is difficult for learners to use them for the task given by the teachers to be carried out. This is partly due to the initial design of such devices, and partly due to non-existence of such developed mobile phones. However, those devices which are appropriate for specific learning tasks are too expensive for most of the learners to buy. Thus, teachers should be aware of what kinds of tools learners have, and then set to choose or adapt resources compatible to such tools.

2.6. Conclusion

The rising speed of mobile technology is increasing and penetrating all aspects of the lives, so that this technology plays a vital role in learning different dimensions of knowledge. Today a clear shift from teacher-led learning to student-led learning that m-learning offer, allow students to find that using mobile technology is more



effective and interesting than traditional method. In fact, it can provide a richer learning environment.

Golonkaa, Bowles, Frank and Richardson (2014) clarify that although the use of technology is to enhance FL learning and teaching has grown rapidly during the past three decades, most research has focused on its viability for supporting foreign language (FL) learning; very few empirical studies support its efficacy for improving FL learning processes or outcomes. Rather, most studies seem to focus on either describing the affordances offered by particular types of technology or measuring their effects on students' affective reactions, such as increased motivation or increased enjoyment of learning activities.

Although describing technology's uses and students' enjoyment when using it are admirable and useful goals, it remains unclear to what extent the activities supported by the technology or the potential increased motivation attributed to them. One might make the argument that in term of giving much clarification of the argument, mobile devices, for example, could increase motivation and increase options for the teacher to create a variety of self-selecting study activities. This also will help him/ her plan more engaging activities with language, more time on task, and increased proficiency. However, for most technology, actual increases in learning or proficiency have yet to be demonstrated. Some potential uses of technology for learning have not been explored at all. Clearly, empirically derived evidence is required to quantify, characterize, and document the impact technology can have on adult FL learning. Mobile Learningtechnology has now matured to the point where studies of this type are now possible.

However M-learning plays an important role in the field of modern education, it is beneficial for both teachers and students as Behera (2013) pointed out that M-



learning creates personal responsibility for their own learning when teachers build successfully self-knowledge and self-confidence for students. The recent trend to Mlearning will also bring a substantial change in the method of spreading knowledge to improve the quality in teacher education and hence will make teachers follow global standard. Thus, these are beneficial to education, corporations and to all types of teachers / learners. It is the effective learning process created by combining digitally delivered content with learning support and service. Therefore, it canbeconclude that teachers need to acquire technical skills in order to succeed in using mobile technology which provides teachers with innovative opportunities to deliver instruction.



www.manaraa.com

Chapter(2)

Research Methodology and Procedures

- **3.1. Introduction**
- **3.2. Research Design**
- **3.3. Research Variables**
- **3.4.** Population and Sample
- **3.5. Research Instrument**
- 3.6. Questionnaire Validity and Reliability
- **3.7. Research Procedures**
- 3.8. Data Analysis
- 3.9. Summary



Methodology and Procedures

3.1 Introduction

The purpose of this chapter is to present the methodology of the current study which includes research design, methods, population, instruments and procedures used for data collection as well as data analysis.

3.2 Research Design

The current study is both descriptive and analytical. A quantitative research design is utilized to investigate language instructors' adoption of mobile and the effect of gender, age, and qualification and experience variables on adoption. The instrument of this study is a questionnaire developed by the researcher and it and administered to EFL instructors at ELC in Taibah University in Al-MadinahAl-Munawwara.

3.3 Research Variables

The independent variable of the study is the adoption of Mobile Learningat ECL in Taibah University.The dependent variables include gender, age, qualification and years of experience

3.4 Population and Sample

The population of the study was represented by the English Language Center instructors in the male and female campuses of TaibahUniversity, Al-Madinah Al-Munawwara. The total number of language instructors is (102),(67) are male and 35 female instructors during the implementation of the study. The researcher addressed all instructors in order to measure thire adoption of Mobile Learning in teaching



EFLand to examine if there are significant differences between the male and female instructors according to gender, age, and qualification and experience variables.

3.5. Research Instrument

The instrument used for the study was a questionnaire which was developed to elicit reliable and valid data regarding Mobile Learningadoption by language instructors at ELC. The questionnaire was constructed by the researcherafter reviewing the literature of some studies likeFozdar and Kumar. (2007), Oz (2014),Kalloo and Mohan (2012) and Dashtestani (2013).Itwas divided into two sections:the first sectionwas used to collect background information like name, gender, age, nationality,qualification, years of experience and number of sessions attended in technology field. The second sectioncovered the following domains:

- a) Usefulness of Mobile Learning adoption for EFL instructors: this area deals withlanguage instructors perceptions towards the usefulness of Mobile Learning as perceptions usually affect adoption.
- b) Ease of using Mobile Learning for EFL instructors: this area deals withwhether language instructorsfind Mobile Learning an easy method to deliver instruction.
- c) Mobile Learning adoption in teaching language skills: this areadeals withwhich language skills and aspects taught through Mobile Learning.
- d) Types of teaching practices for EFL instructors: this area investigates the types of teaching practices adopted by Mobile Learning.
- e) Features and apps adoption of Mobile Learning for EFL instructors: this area deals with which features and apps they find useful to use



www.manaraa.com
f) Adoption challenges of Mobile Learning for EFL instructors: this area deals with the challenges or difficulties that might face instructors in utilizing Mobile Learning.

The participants' responses were scored on a five-point Likert scale,1=never, 2=rarely, 3=sometimes, 4=frequently and 5=always.

3.6. Questionnaire Validity and Reliability

Questionnairevalidity is concerned with the "meaningfulness of research components" (Drost, N.D p106) and reliability means "the extent to which measurements are repeatable –when different persons perform the measurements, on different occasions, under different conditions, with supposedly alternative instruments which measure the same thing" (Drost, N.D p114), To check content validity of the questionnaire, it was judged by some specialists in the field of language teaching and necessary modifications were made. The researcher also calculated the Pearson correlation coefficient between each statement and the total score of the axis to which its belong, in order to check validity of the internal consistency of the questionnaire (See Table 1)

Table (1)

Axis	Question	Pearson correlation coefficient	P- Value (Sig)	Pearson correlation coefficient	P- Value (Sig)	
	1.	.741**	.000			
	2.	.779**	.000			
	3.	.717**	.000		.000	
First	4.	.825**	.000	.555**		
	5.	.823**	.000			
	6.	.734**	.000			
	7.	.569**	.000			
	8.	.305**	.007			
	9.	.290**	.010			
Second	10.	.267*	.031	.333**	.000	
	11.	.747**	.000			
	12.	.682**	.000			

Pearson correlation coefficients between each statement and the total score of each axis



		Pearson	Р-	Pearson	P-
Axis	Question	correlation	Value	correlation	Value
	12	coefficient	(Sig)	coefficient	(Sig)
	15.	.743***	.000		
	14.	.386**	.000		
	15.	./0/**	.000		
	16.	./68**	.000	<1.0 xkvk	000
Third	17.	./13**	.000	.619**	.000
	18.	.654**	.000		
	19.	.703**	.000		
	20.	.694**	.000		
	21.	.699**	.000		
	22.	.804**	.000		.000
	23.	.821**	.000		
	24.	.749**	.000		
	25.	.795**	.000		
Fourth	26.	.787**	.000	.825**	
	27.	.520**	.000		
	28.	.801**	.000		
	29.	.731**	.000		
	30.	.669**	.000		
	31.	.685**	.000		
	32.	.570**	.000		
	33.	.614**	.000		
	34.	.705**	.000		
	35.	.683**	.000		
T7*641.	36.	.513**	.000	700**	000
Fiith	37.	.685**	.000	./88***	.000
	38.	.748**	.000		
	39.	.688**	.000		
	40.	.586**	.000		
	41.	.749**	.000		
-	42.	.612**	.000		
	43.	.813**	.000		
Sixth	44.	.726**	.000	.624**	.000
	45.	.901**	.000		
	46.	.715**	.000		
	47.				

Note: (**) means significant at the(0.01)level of significance or less Note: (*) means significant at the (0.05) level of significance or less

The questionnaire reliability was calculated by using Alpha Cronbach Method. The results illustrated in table (2)showed that the reliability coefficients were between (0.8016-0.9124), which indicates that the tool is characterized by high stability.



Axis	Coefficients Cronbach's alpha			
First	0.8629			
Second	0.8016			
Third	0.8115			
Fourth	0.9124			
Fifth	0.8552			
Sixth	0.8157			
Complete questionnaire	0.8884			

Table (2) Reliability coefficientRatios of Cronbach's Alpha

3.7. Research Procedures

In order to collect the required data of the current study, Two official letters were obtained from college of education (See Appendix A). The first was an official letter to Deanship of Higher Studies and Scientific Research to get permission to conduct the research instrument. The second official letter was sent to Deanship of Educational Affairs to get permission to collect the required data. After getting permission, the researcher distributed the questionnaire copies to allanguage instructors in both male and female campuses at ELC in Taibah University.

The questionnaire was administrated during one week from 15th of April, 2015 to 22th of April, 2015. All language instructors were informed that filling out the questionnaire was optional and they had the right to complete it or not. Instructors were also told that the information obtainedwould beconfidential and would be used for scientific research purposes. A brief explanation of the purposes of the questionnaire was provided and instructions were given to ensure the clarity and accuracy of the statements and also to stimulate participants toresponding to it items honestly.



Later, the researcher collected the questionnaire forms during two weeks. Regarding the (35) distributed copies of the female instructors, only (31) copies were returned. As for male instructors, (67) copies of the questionnaire were distributed, but only (38) copies were returned.

3.8.Data Analysis

After administration of the questionnaire, the collected data were statistically analyzed by using SPSS (version, 19). The following statistical methods were used: a) DescriptiveStatistics (frequencies,percentages, means and standard deviation) were used to describe and summarize the properties of the mass of data collected from the respondents. b) Inferential Statistics using the Independent Samples t-test were applied to test the null hypotheses formulated for this study and to see whether the scores of male and female subjects differed in their adoption of Mobile Learning.

c) Pearson correlation coefficient to validity the validity of internal consistency.

d) Cronbach's alpha coefficient for reliability.

3.9.Summary

This chapter discussed the research methodology used in order to answer the research questions and to test its hypotheses . The research was a descriptive one and used the quantitative design for achieving the best goals of the study. The instrument used in this study was a questionnaire administrate to a sample of language instructors at ELC in Taibah University in Al-Madinah Al-Munawwara. The collected data were analyzed statistically by using SPSS (version, 19).



Chapter(3)

Results and Discussion

4.1. Data Analysis and Results
4.1.1. The results concerning demographic information
4.1.2. The results of Research Questions
4.1.2.1. The result of the first question
4.1.2.2. The result of the second question
4.1.2.3. The result of the third question
4.1.2.4. The result of the fourth question
4.1.2.5. The result of the fifth question
4.1.3. Discussion of the Research Results
4.1.4. The relationship between review of literature and the results of
current study
4.2. Recommendations
4.3. Suggestions for further research
4.4. References
4.5. Appendices



Results and Discussion

4.1. Data Analysis and Results

This chapter presents researchresults, discussion, recommendations and suggestions for further research.

4.1.1. The results concerning demographic information

Table (3)

Section	Variable	Answers	Frequencies	Percentages
		Male	38	55.1%
	Gender	Female	31	44.9%
		Total	69	100.0%
		20-30	7	10.1%
		31-40	39	56.5%
	A 70	41-50	16	23.2%
Personal	Age	up to 50	6	8.7%
		Non respond	1	1.4%
		Total	69	100.0%
		Saudi	3	4.3%
	Nationality	non saudi	48	69.6%
	Inationality	Non respond	18	26.1%
		Total	69	100.0%
		TEFL	38	55.1%
	Specialist	Other	9	13.0%
	Specialist	Non respond	22	31.9%
		Total	69	100.0%
		Bachelor	13	18.8%
	Last degree of	Master	50	72.5%
	the	Ph.D	5	7.2%
Professionally	Qualification	Others	1	1.4%
		Total	69	100.0%
		Less than 5 years	12	17.4%
		From 5-10 years	20	29.0%
	Years of	From 11-15years	18	26.1%
	experience	More than 15 years	14	20.3%
		Non respond	5	7.2%
		Total	69	100.0%
Comoral	Do you attend	Not attend session	9	13.0%
Questions	sessions or	From 1-5 session	40	58.0%
Questions	courses in	From 6-10 session	2	2.9%

Frequencies and Percentages of Demographic Information



Section	Variable	Answers	Frequencies	Percentages
	applying	More than 10 session	3	4.3%
	technology into	Non respond	15	21.7%
	teaching	Total	69	100.0%
		Regular	2	2.9%
	My cell phone	smart phone	66	95.7%
	is:	Non respond	1	1.4%
		Total	69	100.0%
		Iphone	18	26.1%
		Galaxy	38	55.1%
	Type your mobile phone	Sony	1	1.4%
		Nokia	2	2.9%
		Non respond	10	14.5%
		Total	69	100.0%
	De la	Yes	34	49.3%
	Do you have	No	34	49.3%
	tablet?	Non respond	1	1.4%
	tublet.	Total	69	100.0%

The results as presented in table(3) are the following

- 1. They are (55.1%) male instructors whereas there are(44.9%) female instructors.
- The ages of most of instructors range from (31-40) which was estimated (56.5 %).
- 3. Most of them are non Saudi (69.6%) and (26.1%) did not respond whereas only (4.3%) are Saudi instructors.
- 4. Most of them have master degree (72.5%).
- 5. (17.4%) of the participants have less than 5 years of experience, (29 %) from
 5-10, (26.1%) from 11-15, and (20.3%) more than 15, whereas (7.2%) did not respond.
- 6. Of the total participants (95.7%) usesmart phones,(59.4%) use android,(26.1%) use Apple,whereas (14.5%) did not respond.
- 7. Half of the instructors have tablet(49.3%) and only (1.4%) did not respond.

4.1.2. The Results of Research Questions



4.1.2.1. The results of the first question

To answer the first question"Do male and female instructors at the ELC in Taibah University adopt Mobile Learning technology in TEFL? the data collected from the six sub-questions were statistically examined, analyzed and discussed.

The result of the first sub-question:

To answer the first sub-question which stated that "To what extent do male and female language instructors find Mobile Learning useful for teaching EFL?", frequencies, percentages, mean and standard deviation, independent samples T- test for each statement of the first domain were calculated and illustrated in tables (4) and (5).

Table (4)

Frequencies and percentages for each statement in first domain

No	Statement		1	Male (38)			Female (31)				
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
1	Mobile learning provides instructors with new opportunities to teach English.	8 21.1%	14 36.8%	15 39.5%	1 2.6%	-	5 16.1%	10 21.4%	15 48.4%	1 3.2%	-
2	Mobile learning allows language instructors to prepare more interesting activities.	8 21.1%	11 28.9%	14 36.8%	4 10.5%	1 2.6%	2 6.5%	7 22.6%	17 54.8%	5 16.1%	-
3	Mobile learning provides more flexibility; can be used anytime, anywhere.	19 50%	12 31.6%	6 15.8%	1 2.6%	-	8 25.8%	10 32.3%	12 38.7%	1 3.2%	-
4	Mobile learning can enhance the productivity of language instructors in class.	7 18.4%	16 42.1%	10 26.3%	4 10.5%	-	2 6.5%	8 25.8%	17 54.8%	4 12.9%	-
5	Using mobile learning helps language instructors to accomplish teaching	6 15.8%	10 26.3%	18 47.4%	3 7.9%	1 2.6%	2 6.5%	7 22.6%	18 58.1%	4 12.9%	-



No	Statement		1	Male (38)				F	emale (31)		
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
	activities more quickly.										
6	Mobile learning can enhance language instructors to develop themselves professionally.	5 13.2%	9 23.7%	19 50%	3 7.9%	1 2.6%	1 3.2%	10 32.3%	15 48.4%	5 16.1%	-
7	Using mobile learning helps language instructors to contact easily with students and colleagues in the field.	18 47.4%	12 31.6%	7 18.4%	-	1 2.6%	14 45.2%	11 35.5%	5 16.1%	1 3.2%	

Table (5) Means and standard deviation , independent samples T- test foreach statement in first domain

No	Statement		Male	e		Female		Comparison		
		Mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P-value	
1	Mobile learning provides instructors with new opportunities to teach English.	3.76	.820	Frequently	3.58	.886	Frequently	.887	.378	
2	Mobile learning allows language instructors to prepare more interesting activities.	3.55	1.032	Frequently	3.19	.792	Sometimes	1.591	.116	
3	Mobile learning provides more flexibility; can be used anytime, anywhere.	4.29	.835	Always	3.81	.873	Frequently	2.342*	.022	
4	Mobile learning can enhance the productivity of language instructors in class.	3.70	.909	Frequently	3.26	.773	Sometimes	2.149*	.035	
5	Using mobile learning helps language instructors to accomplish teaching activities more quickly.	3.45	.950	Frequently	3.23	.762	Sometimes	1.051	.297	
6	Mobile learning can enhance language instructors to develop themselves professionally.	3.38	.924	Sometimes	3.23	.762	Sometimes	.734	.466	
7	Using mobile learning helps language	4.21	.935	Always	4.23	.845	Always	070	.944	



No	Statement		Male	e		Female		Comparison	
		Mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P-value
	instructors to contact easily with students and colleagues in the field.								
	The General mean	3.76	.715	Frequently	3.50	.527	Frequently	1.687	.096

Note (*) means significant at level of significance (0.05) between male and female.

The obtained results from table (4, 5) are interpreted as follows:

- Reached the General mean of all statement (3.76) with a standard deviation (0.715), and this means that the usefulness of using Mobile Learning by EFL male instructors "Frequently".
- Reached the General mean of all statement (3.50) with a standard deviation (0.527), and this means that the usefulness of using Mobile Learning by EFL female instructors "Frequently".
- The highest mean score in both male and female groups was obtained by the seventh statement (*Mean* for male=4.21, *Mean* for female=4.23). Both agree totally that the most useful advantage in using Mobile Learning was that it helps them to contact easily with their students and colleagues in the field.
- The least useful advantage for male in this domain was obtained by statement number (5), which stated that Mobile Learning helps them to accomplish teaching activities, where the least useful advantage for female was obtained by statement number (2), which stated that Mobile Learning allowed them to prepare more interesting activities.
- There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) in the usefulness of using Mobile Learning by EFL male and female instructors.

The second sub-question:



To answer the second sub-question which stated that "To what extent do EFL male and instructors find that Mobile Learningeasy to use?", frequencies, percentages, means, standard deviations, and independent samples T- test for each statement of the seconddomain were calculated and illustrated in tables (6) and (7).

Table (6)

Frequencies and percentages for each statement in second domain

No	Statement			Male			Female				
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
8	It is easy for me to use various features and apps in mobile devices.	19 50%	13 34.2%	5 13.2%	1 2.6%	-	8 25.8%	12 38.7%	8 25.8%	3 9.7%	-
9	I need the assistance of an experienced person before using mobile feature or apps in class.	2 5.3%	1 2.6%	15 39.5%	8 21.1%	12 31.6%	-	7 22.6%	7 22.6%	11 35.5%	6 19.4%
10	I face difficulties in using mobile devices in teaching.	1 2.6%	2 5.3%	8 21.1%	17 44.7%	9 23.7%	1 3.2%	4 12.9%	14 45.2%	6 19.4%	5 16.1%
11	I can deal with hardware components of mobile devices.	5 13.2%	10 26.3%	8 21.1%	10 26.3%	5 13.2%	2 6.4%	10 32.2%	7 22.6%	5 16.1%	7 22.6%
12	I can deal with software components of mobile devices.	9 23.7%	16 42.1%	8 21.1%	3 7.9%	2 5.3%	3 9.7%	11 35.5%	9 29%	5 16.1%	3 9.7%
13	I can fix common mobile technical problems if I face any.	5 13.2%	12 31.6%	11 28.9%	7 18.4%	3 7.9%	3 9.7%	5 16.1%	9 29%	8 25.8%	6 19.4%



No	Statement		Male Female				Comp	arison	
		mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P-value
8	It is easy for me to use various features and apps in mobile devices.	4.30	.812	Always	3.81	.946	Frequently	2.303*	.024
9	I need the assistance of an experienced person before using mobile feature or apps in class.	2.29	1.113	Rarely	2.48	1.061	Rarely	737	.464
10	I face difficulties in using mobile devices in teaching.	2.16	.958	Rarely	2.67	1.028	Sometimes	-2.074*	.042
11	I can deal with hardware components of mobile devices.	3.00	1.273	Sometimes	2.77	1.251	Sometimes	.756	.452
12	I can deal with software components of mobile devices.	3.71	1.088	Frequently	3.13	1.106	Sometimes	2.156*	.035
13	I can fix common mobile technical problems if I face any.	3.24	1.149	Sometimes	2.55	1.121	Sometimes	2.444*	.017
	The General mean	3.12	.496	Sometimes	2.91	.626	Sometimes	1.520	.133

 Table (7)

 Means, standard deviationsand independent samples T- test for each of the statement in second domain

Note (*) means significant at level of significance (0.05) between male and female.

The obtained results from table (6, 7) are interpreted as follows:

- Reached the General mean of all statement (3.12) with a standard deviation (0.496), and this means that the extent do the EFL male instructors will see that Mobile Learning easy to use " **Sometimes** ".
- Reached the General mean of all statement (2.91) with a standard deviation (0.626), and this means that the extent do the EFL female instructors will see that Mobile Learning easy to use " **Sometimes''**.
- The highest mean score in both male and female groups was obtained by the eighth statement (*Mean* for male=4.30, *Mean* for female=3.81). Both agree totally that it is easy for them to use various features and apps in mobile devices. There were statistically significant differences at level of significance



(0.05) between male and female in favor of male group. Using various features was easier for male than female.

- There were statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between male and female in favor of male group regarding the statement number (7), Males rarely face difficulties with hardware components of devices, while females sometimes face difficulties.
- There were statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between male and female in favor of male group regarding the statement number (13), It was easier for male to fix technical problems if they face than females.
- There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between **male and female** instructors in the easy to use domain.

The third sub-question:

To answer the third sub-question which stated that "To what extent do EFL male and female instructors adopt Mobile Learning in teaching language skills?", frequencies, percentages, means, standard deviations and independent samples T- test for each statement of the thirddomain were calculated and illustrated in tables (8) and (9).

No	Statement			Male			Female				
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
14	I use mobile learning in teaching the listening skill.	2 5.3%	7 18.4%	11 28.9%	7 18.4%	11 28.9%	2 6.5%	4 12.9%	11 35.5%	3 9.7%	11 35.5%
15	I use mobile learning in teaching the speaking skill.	-	8 21.1%	10 26.3%	11 28.9%	9 23.7%	2 6.5%	4 12.9%	8 25.8%	8 25.8%	9 29%

 Table (8)

 Frequencies and percentages for each statement in third domain



No	Statement			Male			Female					
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	
16	I use mobile learning in teaching the reading skill.	-	8 21.1%	10 26.3%	10 26.3%	10 26.3%	-	2 6.5%	11 35.5%	6 19.4%	12 38.7%	
17	I use mobile learning in teaching the writing skill.	-	7 18.4%	6 15.8%	11 28.9%	14 36.8%	-	3 9.7%	11 35.5%	8 25.8%	9 29%	
18	I use mobile learning in teaching grammar.	-	6 15.8%	7 18.4%	14 36.8%	11 28.9%	-	2 6.5%	9 29%	9 29%	10 32.3%	
19	I use mobile learning in teaching vocabulary.	2 5.3%	13 34.2%	11 28.9%	7 18.4%	5 13.2%	3 9.7%	8 25.8%	9 29%	6 19.4%	5 16.1%	
20	I use mobile learning in teaching pronunciation.	1 2.6%	12 31.6%	10 26.3%	8 21.1%	6 15.8%	2 6.5%	7 22.6%	8 25.8%	9 29%	5 16.1%	

Table (9)

Means, standard deviations ,and independent samples T- test for each statement in third domain

No	Statement		Male	2		Fema	le	Comparison		
		Mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P-value	
14	I use mobile learning in teaching the listening skill.	2.53	1.246	Rarely	2.45	1.287	Rarely	.244	.808	
15	I use mobile learning in teaching the speaking skill.	2.45	1.083	Rarely	2.42	1.232	Rarely	.100	.920	
16	I use mobile learning in teaching the reading skill.	2.42	1.106	Rarely	2.10	1.012	Rarely	1.258	.213	
17	I use mobile learning in teaching the writing skill.	2.16	1.128	Rarely	2.26	.999	Rarely	386	.701	
18	I use mobile learning in teaching grammar.	2.11	.979	Rarely	2.10	.960	Rarely	.046	.963	
19	I use mobile learning in	3.00	1.139	Sometimes	2.94	1.237	Sometimes	.225	.823	



No	Statement		Male	•		Fema	le	Comparison		
		Mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P-value	
	teaching vocabulary.									
20	I use mobile learning in teaching pronunciation.	2.84	1.143	Sometimes	2.74	1.182	Sometimes	.339	.735	
	The General mean	2.50	.784	Rarely	2.43	.731	Rarely	.354	.724	

The obtained results from table (8, 9) are interpreted as follows:

- Reached the General mean of all statement (2.50) with a standard deviation (0.784), and this means that the extent do the EFL male instructors adopt Mobile Learning in teaching language skills " Rarely ".
- Reached the General mean of all statement (3.43) with a standard deviation (0.731), and this means that the extent do the EFL female instructors adopt Mobile Learning in teaching language skills " Rarely".
- Both male and female instructors sometimes adopted Mobile Learning in the teaching of vocabulary and pronunciation, and they rarely adopted it in the teaching of listening, speaking, reading, writing or grammar.
- There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL male and female instructors regarding Mobile Learningadoptionin teaching language skills and aspects.

The fourth sub-question:

To answer the fourth sub-question which stated that "What are the types of teaching practices do EFL male and female instructors use?, frequencies, percentages, means, standard deviations and independent samples T- test for each statement of the fourthdomain were calculated and illustrated in tables (10) and (11).



Table (10)

No	Statement			Male					Female		
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
21	I use mobile devices to send course assignments to my students.	9 23.7%	14 36.8%	10 26.3%	3 7.9%	2 5.3%	11 35.5%	5 16.1%	6 19.4%	5 16.1%	4 12.9%
22	I use mobile learning to share educational content with my students.	12 31.6%	5 13.2%	13 34.2%	6 15.8%	2 5.3%	9 29%	9 29%	5 16.1%	5 16.1%	3 9.7%
23	I use mobile devices to discuss some ideas and concepts with my students.	7 18.4%	5 13.2%	17 44.7%	5 13.2%	4 10.5%	4 12.9%	5 16.1%	9 29%	6 19.4%	7 22.6%
24	I use mobile devices to inform them about course alerts.	14 36.8%	14 36.8%	9 23.7%	-	1 2.6%	17 54.8%	4 12.9%	5 16.1%	2 6.5%	3 9.7%
25	I use mobile devices to send or receive emails from my students.	17 44.7%	12 31.6%	3 7.9%	3 7.9%	3 7.9%	11 35.5%	9 29%	4 12.9%	3 9.7%	4 12.9%
26	I use mobile devices to send course files or documents.	17 44.7%	7 18.4%	8 21.1%	4 10.5%	2 5.3%	10 32.3%	8 25.8%	7 22.6%	4 12.9%	2 6.5%
27	I use mobile devices to save course files in cloud storage like dropbox.	9 23.7%	6 15.8%	8 21.1%	6 15.8%	9 23.7%	5 16.1%	7 22.6%	6 19.4%	7 22.6%	6 19.4%
28	I use mobile devices to ask questions and receive students' answers.	7 18.4%	8 21.1%	13 34.2%	5 13.2%	5 13.2%	7 22.6%	7 22.6%	7 22.6%	4 12.9%	6 19.4%
29	I use mobile devices to provide my students with feedback on their assignments.	4 10.5%	3 7.9%	13 34.2%	9 23.7%	9 23.7%	4 12.9%	5 16.1%	10 32.3%	5 16.1%	7 22.6%
30	I use mobile devices to encourage students work collaboratively through using some applications.	6 15.8%	6 15.8%	12 31.8%	8 21.1%	6 15.8%	3 9.7%	3 9.7%	9 29%	9 29%	7 22.6%
31	I use mobile devices to fulfill some administrative class work.	8 21.1%	6 15.8%	16 42.1%	6 15.8%	2 5.3%	4 12.9%	6 19.4%	9 29%	8 25.8%	4 12.9%

Frequencies and percentages for each statement in fourth domain



			Male	e		Fema	le	Comp	arison
No	Statement	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P- value
21	I use mobile devices to send course assignments to my students.	3.66	1.097	Frequently	3.45	1.457	Frequently	.671	.505
22	I use mobile learning to share educational content with my students.	3.50	1.247	Frequently	3.52	1.338	Frequently	052	.959
23	I use mobile devices to discuss some ideas and concepts with my students.	3.16	1.197	Sometimes	2.77	1.334	Sometimes	1.258	.213
24	I use mobile devices to inform them about course alerts.	4.05	.928	Frequently	3.97	1.378	Frequently	.305	.762
25	I use mobile devices to send or receive emails from my students.	4.03	1.236	Frequently	3.65	1.404	Frequently	1.193	.237
26	I use mobile devices to send course files or documents.	3.87	1.256	Frequently	3.65	1.253	Frequently	.735	.465
27	I use mobile devices to save course files in cloud storage like dropbox.	2.95	1.490	Sometimes	2.94	1.389	Sometimes	.030	.976
28	I use mobile devices to ask questions and receive students' answers.	3.18	1.270	Sometimes	3.16	1.440	Sometimes	.070	.944
29	I use mobile devices to provide my students with feedback on their assignments.	2.58	1.244	Sometimes	2.81	1.327	Sometimes	733	.466
30	I use mobile devices to encourage students work collaboratively through using some applications.	2.95	1.293	Sometimes	2.55	1.234	Sometimes	1.301	.198
31	I use mobile devices to fulfill some administrative class work.	3.32	1.141	Sometimes	2.94	1.237	Sometimes	1.326	.189
	The General mean	3.38	.918	Sometimes	3.23	.936	Sometimes	.748	.457

 Table (11)

 means, standard deviation, and independent samples T- test for each of the statement in fourth domain

The obtained results from table (10, 11) are interpreted as follows:

• Reached the General mean of all statement (3.38) with a standard deviation (0.918), and this means that the EFL **male** instructors used types teaching practices of Mobile Learning" **Sometimes** ".in this domain.



- Reached the General mean of all statement (3.23) with a standard deviation (0.936), and this means that the EFL femaleused types teaching practices of Mobile Learning" Sometimes ".in this domain.
- The types of practices that obtained the highest means among male instructors were: 1) using mobile devices to inform students about course alerts, 2) sending and receiving emails, and 3) sending and receiving course files and documents, whereas the least used type of practices was using mobile devices to provide students with feedback on course assignments.
- The types of practices that obtained the highest means among female instructors were:1) using mobile devices to inform students about course alerts, 2)sending and receiving course files and documents, and 3) sharing educational content with their students, whereas the least used type of practices was using devices to encourage collaboration among students.
- There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL male and female instructors in types of teaching practices domain.

The fifth sub-question:

To answer the fourth sub-question which stated that "What are the mobile features and apps do EFL male and female instructors use?, frequencies, percentages, means, standard deviations and independent samples T- test for each statement of the fifthdomain were calculated and illustrated in tables (12) and (13).



Table (12)

Frequencies and percentages for each statement in fifth domain

No	Statemer	nt		Male					Female		
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
32	I encourage my students to use the "Notes" feature to take notes.	1 2.6%	3 7.9%	10 26.3%	13 34.2%	11 28.9 %	3 9.7%	2 6.5%	4 12.9%	8 25.8%	14 45.2%
33	I encourage my students to use the "camera" feature to take picture or videos related to the course.	5 13.2%	7 18.4%	12 31.6%	7 18.4%	7 18.4 %	3 9.7%	9 29%	6 19.4%	6 19.4%	7 22.6%
34	I encourage my students to use the "text messaging" feature to contact with others in English.	8 21.1%	10 26.3%	11 28.9%	7 18.4%	2 5.3%	8 25.8%	4 12.9%	7 22.6%	4 12.9%	8 25.8%
35	I encourage my students to use the "Bluetooth" feature for sending and receiving documents in case of low internet access.	3 7.9%	3 7.9%	10 26.3%	8 21.1%	14 36.8 %	1 3.2%	1 3.2%	4 12.9%	5 16.1%	20 64.5%
36	I encourage my students to use the " whatsapp" to keep in contact with me.	19 50%	11 28.9%	4 10.5%	-	4 10.5 %	15 48.4%	5 16.1%	4 12.9%	3 9.7%	4 12.9%
37	I encourage my students to download some apps that facilitate learning English.	10 26.3%	11 28.9%	12 31.6%	2 5.3%	3 7.9%	5 16.1%	7 22.6%	12 38.7%	5 16.1%	2 6.5%
38	I encourage my students to download some educational apps to view course content.	10 26.3%	6 15.8%	13 34.2%	5 13.2%	4 10.5 %	4 12.9%	8 25.8%	9 29%	5 16.1%	5 16.1%
39	I encourage my students to post status updates to social apps (like Facebook and Twitter) to contact with native speakers.	5 13.2%	4 10.5%	7 18.4%	9 23.7%	13 34.2 %	2 6.5%	3 9.7%	8 25.8%	4 12.9%	14 45.2%



No	Statemer	nt		Male			Female					
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	
40	I encourage my students to search course information through using some browser apps like google and chrome.	10 26.3%	6 15.8%	14 36.8%	3 7.9%	5 13.2 %	9 29%	4 12.9%	14 45.2%	3 9.7%	1 3.2%	
41	I encourage my students to upload or download course videos from "YouTube" app.	4 10.5%	10 26.3%	8 21.1%	8 21.1%	7 18.4 %	4 12.9%	4 12.9%	9 29%	6 19.4%	8 25.8%	

Table (13)

Means, standard deviation ,and independent samples T- test for each of the statement in fifth domain

No	Statement	Male Standard Let Market				Fema	le	Comparison	
		mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P- value
32	I encourage my students to use the "Notes" feature to take notes.	2.21	1.044	Rarely	2.10	1.326	Rarely	.399	.691
33	I encourage my students to use the "camera" feature to take picture or videos related to the course.	2.89	1.290	Sometimes	2.84	1.344	Sometimes	.176	.861
34	I encourage my students to use the "text messaging" feature to contact with others in English.	3.39	1.175	Sometimes	3.00	1.549	Sometimes	1.203	.233
35	I encourage my students to use the "Bluetooth" feature for sending and receiving documents in case of low internet access.	2.29	1.271	Rarely	1.65	1.050	Never	2.261*	.027
36	I encourage my students to use the " whatsapp" to keep in contact with me.	4.08	1.260	Frequently	3.90	1.448	Frequently	.550	.584
37	I encourage my students to download some apps that facilitate learning English.	3.61	1.175	Frequently	3.26	1.125	Sometimes	1.245	.218
38	I encourage my students to download some educational apps to view course content.	3.30	1.288	Sometimes	3.10	1.291	Sometimes	.606	.547
39	I encourage my students to post status	2.45	1.408	Rarely	2.19	1.302	Rarely	.770	.444



No	Statement	Male				Fema	le	Comparison	
		mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P- value
	updates to social apps (like Facebook and Twitter) to contact with native speakers.								
40	I encourage my students to search course information through using some browser apps like google and chrome.	3.34	1.321	Sometimes	3.55	1.121	Frequently	690	.493
41	I encourage my students to upload or download course videos from "YouTube" app.	2.89	1.308	Sometimes	2.68	1.351	Sometimes	.663	.509
	The General mean	3.05	.919	Sometimes	2.81	.734	Sometimes	1.165	.248

Note (*) means significant at level of significance (0.05) between male and female.

The obtained results from table (10, 11) are interpreted as follows:

- Reached the General mean of all statement (3.05) with a standard deviation (0.919), and this indicated that the all features and apps of Mobile Learning in this domain were usedby EFL male instructors "Sometimes ".
- Reached the General mean of all statement (2.81) with a standard deviation (0.734), and this indicated that the all features and apps of Mobile Learning in this domain were used by EFL **female** instructors "**Sometimes'**".
- The most common features and apps used by male instructors were: 1) Whatsapp, 2) apps facilitating learning English, and 3) text messaging. They rarely encouraged their students to use the "Note" feature and never used Bluetooth feature.
- The most common features and apps used by female instructors were: 1)
 What's app, 2), web browser apps, and 3) apps facilitating learning English.
 They rarely encouraged their students to post to the social media apps and never used Bluetooth feature.



• There are no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL **male and female** instructors in the use offeatures and apps of Mobile Learning in this domain.

The sixth sub-question:

To answer the fourth sub-question which stated that "What are the adoption challenges do EFL male and female instructors face?, frequencies, percentages, means, standard deviations and independent samples T- test for each statement of the sixthdomain were calculated and illustrated in tables (14) and (14).

	Statement Alwa										
No	Stateme	nt		Male					Female		
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never	Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
42	Using different mobile features and apps requires time and effort.	4 10.5%	6 15.8%	21 55.3%	2 5.3%	5 13.2%	3 9.7%	6 19.4%	14 45.2%	6 19.4%	2 6.5%
43	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning because my classrooms are inaccessible.	4 10.5%	5 13.2%	12 31.6%	10 26.3%	7 18.4%	7 22.6%	6 19.4%	13 41.9%	1 3.2%	4 12.9%
44	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning due to high cost mobile fees.	1 2.6%	3 7.9%	6 15.8%	14 36.8%	14 36.8%	4 12.9%	4 12.9%	11 35.5%	6 19.4%	6 19.4%
45	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning because of lack of technical support.	4 10.5%	6 15.8%	10 26.3%	7 18.4%	11 28.9%	7 22.6%	6 19.4%	9 29%	5 16.1%	4 12.9%
46	I avoid using mobile learning because it is difficult to get what I want.	2 5.3%	1 2.6%	14 36.8%	8 21.1%	13 34.2%	2 6.5%	6 19.4%	8 25.8%	7 22.6%	8 25.8%

 Table (14)

 Frequencies and percentages for each statement in sixth domain



Table (15)

No	Statement	Male Standard Lutermeter				Fema	le	Comparison	
		mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	Mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P- value
42	Using different mobile features and apps requires time and effort.	3.05	1.089	Sometimes	3.06	1.031	Sometimes	046	.963
43	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning because my classrooms are inaccessible.	2.65	1.184	Sometimes	3.35	1.253	Sometimes	2.386*	.020
44	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning because of lack of technical support.	2.54	1.304	Rarely	3.23	1.334	Sometimes	2.136*	.036
45	I avoid using mobile learning because it is difficult to get what I want.	2.24	1.125	Rarely	2.58	1.259	Rarely	-1.197	.236
46	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning due to high cost mobile fees.	2.03	1.052	Rarely	2.81	1.276	Sometimes	2.784*	.007
	The General mean	2.50	.852	Rarely	3.01	.930	Sometimes	- 2.351*	.022

Means standard deviations, and independent samples T- test for each statement in sixth domain

Note (*) means significant at level of significance (0.05) between **male and female**.

The obtained results from tables (14, 15) are interpreted as follows:

Reached the General mean of all statement (2.50) with a standard deviation (0.852), and this means EFL male instructors " Rarely " face challenges in Mobile Learning adoption.



- Reached the General mean of all statement (3.01) with a standard deviation (0.930) ,and this means EFL **female** instructors "**sometimes''** face challenges in Mobile Learning adoption.
- There were statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL male and femaleinstructors favor of female instructors regarding classroom in accessibility, lack of technical support and high costs of mobile fees. Femaleinstructors might not adopt Mobile Learning if they face such challenges.
- There were statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL **male and female**instructors favor of female regarding the challenges of Mobile Learning adoption. Adoption challenges were more serious obstacles that might hinder adoption for female instructors.

4.1.2.2. The results of the second question

To answer the second main question which stated that "What are differences according to gender in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?", and to examine the first null hypothesis which postulated that there would be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to gender variable, Independent sample t. test was run and the obtained results are illustrated in table (16).

Table (16) Means, standard deviation ,and independent samples T- test for each domain

No	Domain	Male			Female			Comparison	
		mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	Mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P- value
1	Usefulness	3.76	.715	Frequently	3.50	.527	Frequently	1.687	.096

المتسارات

No	Domain		Male	•		Femal	Comparison		
		mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	Mean	Standard deviation	Interpretation	T-test	P- value
2	Ease of use	3.12	.496	Sometimes	2.91	.626	Sometimes	1.520	.133
3	Adoption in teaching language skills	2.50	.784	Rarely	2.43	.731	Rarely	.354	.724
4	Types of teaching practices	3.38	.918	Sometimes	3.22	.936	Sometimes	.748	.457
5	Features and apps adoption	3.05	.919	Sometimes	2.81	.734	Sometimes	1.165	.248
6	Adoption challenges	2.50	.852	Rarely	3.01	.930	Sometimes	-2.351*	.022
	All axes (Complete questionnaire)	3.11	.528	Sometimes	2.99	.378	Sometimes	1.031	.306

Note (*) means significant at level of significance (0.05) between male and female

The obtained results from table (16) are interpreted as follows:

- Reached the general mean of all **domains**(3.11) with a standard deviation (0.528), and this means that the adoption of Mobile Learning by **male** instructors at ELC in Taibah University**"Sometimes"**.
- Reached the General mean of all **domains** ((2.99) with a standard deviation (0.378), and this means that the adoption of Mobile Learning by **female** instructors at ELC in Taibah University "**Sometimes**".
- There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL **male and female** instructors in the adoption of Mobile Learning technology at ELC inTaibah University.As a result, the first null hypothesis was accepted.
- There were statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL **male and female** instructors in favor of female instructorswhich indicated that challenges might affect the adoption level of female instructors.

4.1.2.3. The results of the third question



To answer the third main question which stated that "What are differences according to age variable in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?, and to examine the second null hypothesis which postulated that there would be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to age variable",One-Way ANOVA was run and the obtained results are illustrated in table (17).The obtained results are interpreted as follows:There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) in all domains of the questionnaire between**male and female** instructors in the adoption of Mobile Learning technology at ELC inTaibah University regarding to the age variable.As a result, the second null hypothesis was accepted.

Table (17)

Variable	Axis	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	P-Value (Sig.)
		2.439	3	.813	2.006	.122
	First	25.932	64	.405		
		28.370	67			
		.229	3	.076	.233	.873
	Second	20.957	64	.327		
		21.185	67			
		.629	3	.210	.370	.775
	Third	36.242	64	.566		
		36.871	67			
	Fourth	1.149	3	.383	.433	.730
Age		56.634	64	.885		
		57.783	67			
	Fifth	2.209	3	.736	1.020	.390
		46.204	64	.722		
		48.413	67			
		3.491	3	1.164	1.402	.250
	Sixth	53.118	64	.830		
		56.609	67			
		.337	3	.112	.496	.686
	Complete	14.476	64	.226		
	questionnaire -	14.813	67			

The results of One-Way ANOVA regarding to the age variable



4.1.2.4. The results of the fourthquestion

To answer the fourth main question which stated that "What are differences according to qualification variable in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?, and to examine the third null hypothesis which postulated that there would be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to qualification variable", One-Way ANOVA was run and the obtained results are illustrated in table (18). The obtained results are interpreted as follows:There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) in all domains of the questionnaire between**male and female** instructors in the adoption of Mobile Learning technology at ELC inTaibah University regarding to the qualification variable.As a result, the third null hypothesis was accepted.

Table (18)

Variable	Axis	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	P-Value (Sig.)
		2.507	3	.836	2.100	.109
	First	25.869	65	.398		
		28.376	68			
		.327	3	.109	.333	.802
	Second	21.274	65	.327		
		21.601	68			
	Third	2.973	3	.991	1.796	.157
		35.857	65	.552		
Last degree of		38.830	68			
une Qualification	Fourth	1.788	3	.596	.690	.561
Quantication		56.157	65	.864		
		57.945	68			
		4.016	3	1.339	1.960	.129
	Fifth	44.399	65	.683		
		48.415	68			
		4.041	3	1.347	1.649	.187
	Sixth	53.106	65	.817		
		57.147	68			

The results of One-Way ANOVA regarding to the qualification variable



Variable	Axis	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	P-Value (Sig.)
		1.044	3	.348	1.642	.188
	Complete questionnaire	13.779	65	.212		
		14.823	68			

4.1.2.5. The results of the fifthquestion

To answer the fourth main question which stated that "What are differences according to experience variable in terms of adopting Mobile Learning at the ELC in Taibah University?, and to examine the fourth null hypothesis which postulated that there would be no statistically significant differences in the average score of Mobile Learning adoption between male and female instructors toward using Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University according to qualification variable", One-Way ANOVA was run and the obtained results are illustrated in table (19). The obtained results are interpreted as follows:There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) in all domains of the questionnaire between **male and female** instructors in the adoption of Mobile Learning technology at ELC in Taibah University regarding to the qualification variable.As a result, the fourth null hypothesis was accepted.

Variable	Axis	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	P-Value (Sig.)
		7.461	19	.393	.913	.571
	First	18.928	44	.430		
		26.389	63			
		6.449	19	.339	1.037	.443
	Second	14.407	44	.327		
		20.856	63			
X 7 0	Third	8.288	19	.436	.770	.727
Years of		24.938	44	.567		
experience		33.226	63			
		17.913	19	.943	1.202	.299
	Fourth	34.510	44	.784		
		52.423	63			
		15.002	19	.790	1.453	.152
	Fifth	23.912	44	.543		
		38.914	63			

 Table (19)

 The results of One-Way ANOVA regarding to the expperiencevariable



Variable	Axis	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	P-Value (Sig.)
	Sixth Complete questionnaire	15.568	19	.819	.994	.486
		36.288	44	.825		
		51.856	63			
		4.995	19	.263	1.330	.214
		8.695	44	.198		
		13.690	63			

4.1.3. Discussion of the Research Results

This study aimed to investigate Mobile Learningadoption by language instructors at ELC in Taibah University, and to examine the effects of gender, age, qualification and experience variables on the adoption process. The results obtained from the questionnaire analysis were as follow:

- Reached the general mean of all statement (male=3.76, female=3.50), indicated that the **usefulness** of Mobile Learning adoption by EFL male and female instructors was"**Frequently**".
- Reached the general mean of all statement (male=3.12, female=2.91) indicated that the ease of Mobile Learning usebetween male and female instructors was "Sometimes ".There were statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between male and female in favor of male group. Using various features was easier for male than female. Males rarely face difficulties with hardware components of devices.
- Reached the general mean of all statement (male=2, 50, female=3.43) indicated that male and female "rarely "adopted Mobile Learning in the teaching of language skills, but they "**sometimes**" used it to teach vocabulary and pronunciation.
- Reached the general mean of all statement (male=3.38, female=3.23) indicated that male and femaleinstructors used types of teaching practices" **Sometimes** in this domain. The most common types of teaching practices were: using



mobile devices to inform students about course alerts, sending and receiving emails, and sending and receiving course files and documents, and sharing educational content with their students. This result explains that language instructors use mobile devices to contact with students more to teach language.

- Reached the General mean of all statement (male=3.05, female=2.81) and this indicated that the all features and apps of Mobile Learning in this domain were used " **Sometimes** " by EFL male and female instructors The most common features and apps used by language instructors were: What's app, text messaging, web browser apps, and apps facilitating learning English. This result supports the finding that language instructors used mobile devices mainly to keep in touch with their students.
- There were statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) between EFL **male and female**instructors in favor of female regarding the challenges of Mobile Learning adoption. Adoption challenges were more serious obstacles that might hinder adoption in caseof female instructors.
- There were no statistically significant differences at level of significance (0.05) in all domains of the questionnaire between **male and female** instructors in the adoption of Mobile Learningat ELC in Taibah University regarding to gender, age, qualification and experience variables.

4.1.4. The relationship between review of literature and the results of current study



All the results are in consistent with some previous studies such as Behera (2012) and Gorichanaz (2011) discussed the usefulness of using mobile devices in educational fields and how it could be used to contact with students. Goundar(2011), Miangah and Nezarat(2012), and Behera (2012) examined the mobile devices features and applicationssuch as massaging service, e-mail, portability, touch screen ...etc which allowed learning activities and a high degree of user interactivity in additionBehera (2012) researched the easiness of mobile learning for instructors both male and female, whereas in this current study it favoredthe male group andthe female group faced difficulties "sometimes" when using mobile devices as supported byKukulska-Hulme and Traxler (2005) they argued that it had its own constraints as small screen, reading difficulty on such a screen, data storage and multimedia limitations. Gholami and Azarmi (2012) and Chinnery (2006) agreed that there are somelimitations and barriers with mobile devices to be used as educational devices which are considered challenging in this field. In contrast, Kaur and Bhullar(2013) proved that Mobile learning improved language skills" it helped learners to improve their literacy and numeracy skills and to recognize their existing abilities", but Gorichanaz (2011) and Abbasi and Hashmi (2013) results were in consistent with the current study that proved that Mobile learning can be used to teach vocabulary. Concerning the types of teaching practices, Fritschi and Wolf (2012), Levy and Kennedy(2005), Norbrook and Scott(2003) and shunye(2014) emphasized that mobile technology improved teaching practices that enhance the learning process and it is used as a way to distribute contents\materials from teachers to students.

4.2. Recommendations

Based on the findings of this study, the following recommendations are made:



- 1. English language instructors should participate in mobile applications workshops that cover the latest trends of teaching ESL/EFL .Well-qualified instructors have strong impact on language courses.
- 2. It is also important to train students to become good digital literates by helping them to develop self-independence in learning. Students should be provided with strategies for using these digital applications, and to know how they can monitor their progress and evaluate their achievements
- Language instructors need the support of ELC to implement this type of learning in delivering instruction and to make use of different applications available for language learning.

4.3. Suggestions for further research

Although this study focused on investigating the Mobile Learningadoption by language male and female instructors, the following suggestions are addressed in future research as an extension:

- A new study is needed to investigate different impacts of using Mobile Learning strategy for improving of multiple language skills.
- 2. Researchers may investigate attitudes and perceptions of language instructors who use Mobile Learning techniques during their EFL classes
- Future research is proposed to investigate attitudes and perceptions of students towards using Mobile Learning techniques.

References

Abbasi, M., &Hashemi, M. (2013). The impact/s of using mobile phone on English language



vocabulary retention. International Research Journal of Applied and Basic Sciences, 4(3), 546-546.

- Abdul Wahab, S., Che Rose, R., & Osman, S. (2012). Defining the concepts of technology and technology transfer: A literature analysis. *International Business Research*,5(1), 61-71.
- Ally, M. (2009). *Mobile Transforming the Delivery of Education and Training*. Athabasca: AU Press, Athabasca University.
- Alzu'bi, M., Akram, M., Sabha, N. (2013). Using mobile-based email for English foreign language learners. TOJET: *The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*,12(1), p. 185-185.
- Amry, A. (2014). The impact of whatsapp mobile social learning on the achievement and attitudes of female students compared with face to face learning in the classroom. *European Scientific Journal*, 10(22), p. 133-133.

Baran, E. (2014). A review of research on mobile learning in teacher education. *Journal of Educational Technology & Society*, 17(4), 17-32.

- Behera, S. (2014). E- and M-learning: A comparative study. *International Journal on New Trends in Education and Their Implications*,4(3), 65-78.
- Chinnery, G. (2006). Emerging technologies. going to the mall: mobile assisted language learning. *Language Learning &Technology*, 10(1), 9-16.
- Dashtestani, R. (2013). Implementing mobile-assisted language learning (MALL) in an EFL context: Iranian EFL teachers' perspectives on challenges and affordances. *The Jaltcalljournal*,9(2), 149–168.
- Drost, E. (n.d.). Validity and reliability in social science research. *Education Research and Perspectives*, 38(1), 106-114.



www.manaraa.com

- El-Hussein, M. & Cronje, J. (2010). Defining mobile learning in the higher education landscape. *Educational Technology & Society*, 13(3), 12-21.
- Fozdar, B. I., & Kumar, L. S. (2007). Mobile learning and student retention. *International Review of Research in Open and Distance Learning*, 8(2), 1-18.
- Fritschi, J., & Wolf, M. (2012). Mobile learning for Teachers in North America, Exploring the Potential of Mobile Technologies to Support Teachers and Improve Practice. UNESCO Working Paper Series on Mobile Learning. UNESCO.USA.
- Gholami, J., &Azarmi, G. (2012). An introduction to mobile assisted language learning. *International Journal of Managment, IT and Engineering*, 2(8), 1-9.
- Golonkaa, E., Bowles, A., Frank, V., Richardson, D., & Freynik, S. (2014). Technologies for foreign language learning: A review of technology types and their effectiveness. *Computer Assisted Language Learning*, 27(1), 70-107.
- Gorichanaz, T. (2011). Mobile learning: attitudes and effectiveness, p. 12. Retrieved from https://www.academia.edu/1476096/Mobile_Learning_Attitudes_and_Effectiveness
- Goundar, S. (2011). What is the potential impact of using mobile devices in education.
 In Proceedings of SIG GlobDev Fourth Annual Workshop.Shanghai, China. Retrieved from
 http://www.globdev.org/files/Shanghai%20Proceedings/14%
 20REVISED%20Goundar%20Using%20Mobile%20Devices%20in%20 Education%20 %20Final.pdf
- Jones, A.; Issroff, K.; Scanlon, E.; Clough, G.; McAndrew, P. & Blake, C. (2006). Using mobile devices for learning in informal settings: is it motivating? *In: IADIS International Conference on Mobile LearningPapers*, 14-16 July 2006, Dublin, IADIS Press, pp. 251– 255.



Jou, Y. (2008). The effect of email keypal project on the enhancement of reading and writing performance of elementary school-aged EFL students in Taiwan. Published Dissertation: Alliant InternationalUniversity. San Diego.

Kalloo,V., & Mohan, P. (2012). Correlating questionnaire data with actual usage data in a mobile learning study for high school mathematics. *EJEI: Electronic Journal of E-Learning*,10 (1), 84.

- Kaur, A., &Bhullar, M. (2013). A new method of learning: M-Learning (Mobile Learning). Proceedings of the World Congress on Engineering and Computer, Science, 1, 23-25.
- Khrisat, A., & Mahmoud, S. (2013). Integrating mobile phones into the EFL foundation year classroom in King Abdulaziz University/KSA: Effects on achievement in general English and students' attitudes. *English Language Teaching*, 6(8), 162-174.
- Kukulaska-Hulme, A., &Traxler, J. (2005). *Mobile learning: A Handbook forEducators and Trainers*. London: Routledge.
- Kumar, R. (2008). Research Methodology. New Delhi: APH Publishing Corporation.
- Levy, M., Kennedy, C. (2005). Learning italian via mobile SMS. In A. Kukulska-Hulme& J.Traxler (eds.) *Mobile Learning: A Handbook for Educators and Trainers*, Abingdon: Routledge.
- Liu, M., Navarrete, C., Maradiegue, E. &Wivagg, J. (2014). Mobile learning and english language learners: a case study of using ipodtouch as a teaching and learning tool. *Interactive Learning Research*,25(3).
- Mac Callum, K., Jeffrey, L., &Kinshuk. (2014). Factors impacting teachers' adoption of mobile learning. *Information Technology Education*, 13, 154.
- Miangah, T., &Nezarat, A. (2012). Mobile-Assisted language learning. *International Journal of Distributed and Parallel Systems (IJDPS)*, 3(1), 309 -319.



- Norbrook, H., & Scott, P. (2003). Motivation in mobile modern foreign language learning. In J. Attewell, G. Da Bormida, M. Sharples, & C. Savill-Smith (Eds.), *MLEARN 2003: Learning with Mobile Devices* (pp.50-51). London: Learning and Skills Development Agency.
- Öz, H. (2014). Teachers' and students' perceptions of interactive whiteboards in the English as a foreign language classroom. *TOJET: The Turkish Online Journal of Educational Technology*,13(3), 163-164.
- Ramachandran, L. (2009). *Health Education: A New Approach, 1E.* New Delhi: Vikas Publishing House Pvt.
- Shang, H. (2007). An exploratory study of e-mail application on FL writing performance. *Computer Assisted Language Learning* 20(1), 79 -96.

Shunye, W. (2014). A new M-learning system for higher education. *Journal of Chemical and Pharmaceutical Research*, 6(7), 1301-1307.

- Stockwell, G. (2007). Vocabulary on the move: investigating an intelligent mobile phone-based vocabulary tutor. *Computer Assisted Language Learning*,20(4), 365-383.
- Tayebinik, M., &Puteh, M. (2012). Mobile learning to support teaching english as a second language. *Journal of Education and Practice*, 3(7), 56-62.

Thabit, K., &Dehlawi, F. (2012). Towards using mp4 players in teaching english language: an empirical study. *IOSR Journal of Engineering*, 2(8), 25-28.

Traxler, J. (2005). Defining mobile learning. IADIS: International Conference Mobile Learning, 12(2), 261-266). University of Wolverhampton. Retrieved from https://www.academia.edu/2810810 /Defining_mobile_learning

Appendices


- 1. Appendix A: Letter to deanship of academic services
- 2. Appendix B: Letter to deanship of graduate studies
- 3. Appendix C: The Questionnaire
 - 3.1. cover page
 - **3.2. first part(Demographic Information)**
 - **3.3.** second part(Questionnaire Statements)
- 4. Appendix D: List of the Jury Members

Appendix A



1. Letter to deanship of academic services

Ainistry of Higher Education TAIBAH UNIVERSITY	ة التّحليز الحكاني معة طيبة (٣٩٠)
	كلية التربية
حفظه إلله	ة عميد الخدمات التعليمية
نه وبعد	السلام عليك ومحمةالله وبركات
، فإنه يطيب لي إفادة سعادتكم بأن	بناءً على التعاون القائم بيننا وبين عمادتكم الموقرة
راسات العليا لمرحلة الماجستير، وتقوم	نهٔ / صباح بنت صادق حسین بخش، (حدی طالبات الد
معلمي اللغة بجامعة طيبة)) ،وتحتاج	د دراسة بعنوان ((استخدام التعليم المتقل من قبل ا
التدريس بمركز اللغة التابعة لعمادة	ق أداء دراستها على عينة من أعضاء وعضوات هيئة.
	نات التعليمية.
يل مهمة الباحثة.	ليه نأمل التفضل بالموافقة وتعميد من يلزم نحو تسه
	ا سعاد تڪم مقبول خالص تحياتي ،،،
كلية للدراسات العليا والبحثر العلمي	وكيل الد
metr	
	.1
كسالسن بن رائسن المستعري	1 . 1

Appendix B



2. Letter to deanship of graduate studies

الملكذ الغربيت الشيعودت KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA وَذارة التَّعْسَلِيْمُ العُسَاكَيْ **Ministry of Higher Education** كامعة طيبة TAIBAH UNIVERSITY Code (039) الرمز (٠٣٩) يحفظه الله سعادة وكيل كلية التربية للدراسات العليا والبحث العلمي السلام عليكم ورحمة الله وبركاته، ، ، اشارة الى خطاب سعادة الدكتوره / صفاء محمد الحبيشى ، المشرفه على رسالة الطالبة بالدراسات العليا بمرحلة الماجستير بالقسم الطالبة / صباح صادق حسين بخش ، تخصص مناهج وطرق تدريس اللغة انجليزية، بشان طلب سعادتها مساعدة الطالبة في تطبيق اداة دراستها في مركز اللغة التابع لعمادة الخدمات التعليمية بجامعة طيبة في المدينة المنورة . عليه .. نامل من سعادتكم التكرم بمخاطبة عميد عمادة الخدمات التعليمية بالجامعة نحو مساعدة الطالبة في تطبيق اداة دراستها . والله ولى التوهيق، ، ، رئيس قسم المناهج وطرق التدريس المكلف د. عبدالعريز بل سالم إسلام PUTTO +-al

Appendix C



3. The Questionnaire

3.1.Cover page



3.2. The Questionnaire_ First part(demographic information) page 1



Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Ministry of Higher Education Taibah University-College of Education Dept. of Curricula and methods of teaching



المملكة العربية السعودية وزارة التصعيم جامعة طيية - كلية التربية القسم : مناهج وطرق تدريس

Personal	Name (Optional)	Gender	Age (Check)			Nationality (Please write		
Secondaria		M F	20-30	31-40	41-50 □	More than 50		
Professionally	Special (Write	ist 5)	Las	degree of (the Qualifi oose)	ication	Ye exp (Sta	ars of erience ate no)
-	*********		□Bachelor	□Master	DPh.D	DOthers		
General	Do you attend a courses in a technology into (State <u>numbe</u>	sessions or pplying o teaching <u>r</u> please)	My cell phone is (Check)			Do you have any kind of tablet? (mark)		
Questions	I have	e essions	□Regular □Iphone □Galaxy □Smart phone □Nokia		□Yes	□No		

3.3.The Questionnaire_second part(questionnaire statements) page 2



Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Ministry of Higher Education Taibah University-College of Education

Dept. of Curricula and methods of teaching



المملكة العربية السعودية وزارة التصعيم جامعة طيبة - كلية التريبة القسم : مناهج وطرق تدريس

1	Items	5	4	3	2	1
		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Neve
	1. use	fulness		2	-	-
1.	Mobile learning provides instructors with new opportunities to teach English.					
2.	Mobile learning allows language instructors to prepare more interesting activities.					
3.	Mobile learning provides more flexibility; can be used anytime, anywhere.					
4.	Mobile learning can enhance the productivity of language instructors in class.					
5.	Using mobile learning helps language instructors to accomplish teaching activities more quickly.		D			
6.	Mobile learning can enhance language instructors to develop themselves professionally.					
7.	Using mobile learning helps language instructors to contact easily with students and colleagues in the field.					
	2. eas	e of use				a
8.	It is easy for me to use various features and apps in mobile devices.					
9.	I need the assistance of an experienced person before using mobile feature or apps in class.					
10.	I face difficulties in using mobile devices in teaching.					
11.	I can deal with hardware components of mobile devices.					
12.	I can deal with software components of mobile devices.					
13.	I can fix common mobile technical problems if I face any.					
	3. Adoption in tea	ching lan	guage skills	16	-	
14.	I use mobile learning in teaching the listening skill.					
15.	I use mobile learning in teaching the speaking skill.					
15.	I use mobile learning in teaching the speaking skill.	2			C	3

The Questionnaire_second part(questionnaire statements) page 3



Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Ministry of Higher Education Taibah University-College of Education

Dept. of Curricula and methods of teaching



16 1	Items		4	3	2	1
16 1		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Never
10. I S	use mobile learning in teaching the reading kill.					
17. 1 s	use mobile learning in teaching the writing kill.					
18. I	I use mobile learning in teaching grammar.					
19. I	use mobile learning in teaching vocabulary.					
20. I	use mobile learning in teaching pronunciation.					
	4. Types of te	aching pr	actices			
21. I a	use mobile devices to send course assignments to my students.					
22. I	use mobile learning to share educational content with my students.					
23. I	use mobile devices to discuss some ideas and concepts with my students.					
24. I	use mobile devices to inform them about ourse alerts.					
25. I f	use mobile devices to send or receive emails rom my students.					
26. I	use mobile devices to send course files or documents.					
27. I	use mobile devices to save course files in cloud storage like dropbox.					
28. I r	use mobile devices to ask questions and receive students' answers.					
29. I V	use mobile devices to provide my students with feedback on their assignments.					
30. I v a	use mobile devices to encourage students work collaboratively through using some applications.					
31. I a	use mobile devices to fulfill some administrative class work.					
- 23	5- Features an	id apps ad	doption	n i	3	8
32 I	encourage my students to use the "Notes" eature to take notes.					

The Questionnaire_second part(questionnaire statements) page 4



Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Ministry of Higher Education



Taibah University-College of Education Dept. of Curricula and methods of teaching

	Items	5	4	3	2	1
22		Always	Frequently	Sometimes	Rarely	Neve
33.	I encourage my students to use the "camera" feature to take picture or videos related to the course.					
34.	I encourage my students to use the "text messaging" feature to contact with others in English.					
35.	I encourage my students to use the "Bluetooth" feature for sending and receiving documents in case of low internet access.					
36.	I encourage my students to use the " whatsapp" to keep in contact with me.					
37.	I encourage my students to download some apps that facilitate learning English.					
38.	I encourage my students to download some educational apps to view course content.					
39.	I encourage my students to post status updates to social apps (like Facebook and Twitter) to contact with native speakers.					
40.	I encourage my students to search course information through using some browser apps like google and chrome.					
41.	I encourage my students to upload or download course videos from "YouTube" app.					
	6. Adoptio	n challer	iges			
42.	Using different mobile features and apps requires time and effort.					
43.	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning because my classrooms are inaccessible.					
44.	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning due to high cost mobile fees.					
45.	It is difficult for me to use mobile learning because of lack of technical support.					
46.	I avoid using mobile learning because it is difficult to get what I want.					
	Tha	nk you	0			

Appendix D



4. List of the Jury Members

No	Name	Academic Degree
1	Dr. Hayat Rasheed Al-Amri	Associated Professor of EFL Curricula and Instruction
2	Dr. MagedNayman Al-Amri	Associated Professor of EFL Curricula and Instruction
3	Dr. Mahdi MohamadEbraheem	Associated Professor of EFL Curricula and Instruction

استخدام التعليم النقالمن قبل مدرسي اللغة في جامعة طيبة



اعداد

صباح صادق حسين بخش

المستخلص

هدفت الدراسة الحالية تحديد ما إذا كان مدرسي اللغة في مركز اللغة الانجليزية في جامعة طيبة بالمدينة المنورة يميلون لاستخدام التعليم النقال في العملية التعليمية مع الاخذ في الاعتبار لبعض المتغير إت الديمو غر إفية الهامة والخاصبة بهم مثل الجنس والعمر والمؤهل وسنوات الخبرة وتم استخدام استبانة مصممة من قبل الباحثة كأداة قياس و تمت الاجابة عليها من قبل (69) معلم ومعلمة في مركز اللغة الإنجليزية . وقد اثبت التحليل الاحصائي لبيانات الأداة أنه بالرغم من أن معلمي اللغة يجدون سهولة وفوائد كثيرة من استخدام التعليم النقال كوسيلة تعليمية للغة إلا أنهم نادراً ما يستخدمونه في تدريس مهارات اللغة ولكنهم يستعملونه بشكل أساسي للتواصل مع الطلاب والطالبات ، حيث انهم يميلون لاستخدام بعض التطبيقات وبرامج التواصل الاجتماعي مثل الواتس أب والإيميل ومستعرض الانترنت ومميزات الرسائل القصيرة للتنبيهات وتحميل المقررات والمحتوى المطلوب في الدراسة إلى جانب مشاركة الملفات الخاصة بالمقرر كما أن مدرسي اللغةواجهوا بعض الصعوبات التي حالت دون استخدامهم للتعليم النقال وخاصة المدرسات كنقص المعدات اللازمة للفصول الدراسية والتكلفة العالية لاستخدام التعليم المتنقل و قصور الدعم التكنولوجي للبيئة التعليمية الذي سبب عوائق كبيرة في استخدام التعليم النقال. هذا وقد اشارات النتائج لعدم وجود فروق ذات دلالة احصائية في كل المحاور الخاصة في الاستبيان بين معلمي اللغة الذكور والاناث من حيث استخدام التعليم النقال في مركز اللغة الانجليزية التابع لجامعة طيبة عمادة الخدمات التعليمية المدينة المنورة وذلك بالنسبة لمتغيرات الجنس والعمر و المؤ هل و سنو ات الخبر ة

وبناءاً على هذه النتائج توصىي الدراسة معلمي اللغة باستخدام مميزات وميزات الأجهزة المحمولة لتسهيل عملية اكتساب وتعليم اللغة.



المملكة العربية السعودية وزارة التـــــعليم جامعة طيبة - كلية التربية

قسم مناهج وطررق تدريس

Ministry of Education Taibah University-College of Education Dept. of Curricula and methods of teaching

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia



استخدام التعليم النقال من قبل مدرسي اللغة في جامعة طيبة

مشروع بحثيمقدم إلى كليةالتربيةبجامعةطيبة لاستكمالمتطلباتدرجةالماجستير فيالمناهج وطرق تدريس اللغة الإنجليزية

إعداد

صباح صادق حسين بخش

إشراف

الدكتورة : صفاء محمد الحبيشي أستاذمنا هجو طرقتدر يساللَّغة الإنجليزية المشارك كلية التربية - جامعةطيبة

> جامعةطيبة 1436هـ 2015 - م

